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Dear Ian, Ben and David
Transforming Rehabilitation
 
Thank you for your letter of 4 July setting out your concerns about the Transforming Rehabilitation Programme. I am grateful to you for sharing the perspectives and experiences of your members on the transition to the new probation structures on 1 June. 
Let me begin by assuring you that we understand the importance of rolling out these reforms in a measured, orderly way while ensuring that public safety is maintained. Thorough, externally assured business and systems readiness testing was conducted to review key activities that had to be completed prior to transition on 1 June. On the basis of evidence from the testing we remain satisfied that the business was ready to make that transition. 
Furthermore, it is inaccurate to paint a picture of ‘upheaval’ following transition to the new structures.  The cutover period itself progressed well and we have successfully completed the migration of staff, property and ICT to schedule. This has been a substantial achievement and the signing of the property transfer scheme and people transfer scheme marked a key milestone in the implementation of the Transforming Rehabilitation reforms. The Ministry has also worked closely with probation staff to support them throughout the transition. Whilst there are always challenges in a significant change programmes such as this, the new operational processes were developed in close collaboration between the MoJ and Trusts. Thorough testing with Trusts prior to transfer, and rigorous management of the cutover period, allowed us to minimise any impact on business as usual for probation staff. 

We are continuing to provide support to staff in both the NPS and CRCs as they work to embed the new structures. The following headings address the specific concerns that you raised in your letter. 
Excessive workloads/the Risk of Recidivism (RSR) Tool/ case allocation

It is inaccurate to suggest that the transition has resulted in excessive workloads for probation staff, or indeed risks to public safety arising from the use of the RSR Tool or case allocation. As you are aware, former Trust staff were allocated to the new organisations based on resource requirements. This was calculated on the basis of the different operational functions, taking account of the offender groups that each organisation would be responsible for and then matching staff to them. There is no reason why, as a result of our reforms, individual caseloads should rise significantly. The total annual probation caseload has been falling each year since 2008.  At the end of 2013 it stood at around 220,000, down from more than 243,000 in 2008. We are continuing to monitor the national balance of work across NPS and the CRCs, and will allocate further resources if that proves necessary. While potentially there may be some localised issues in relation to individuals’ workload, local managers are able to address this using their discretion. 
With regard to the RSR Tool, we carried out extensive local testing of the key elements of the new Transforming Rehabilitation systems across a number of Probation Trusts.  The tests conducted with operational staff in Trusts showed that the RSR tool is a strong predictor of seriously harmful reoffending. Testing also indicated that the Tool is straightforward to use, in line with our commitment to minimising bureaucracy for frontline staff. 

In terms of case allocation, national guidance on completing the transfer of cases was issued to Probation Trusts at the end of 2013. This outlined that the most important considerations at all times were the management of risk and maintaining continuity of supervision. It was also clear that the target date to complete the transfer of cases was 30 June. Trusts have submitted monthly returns tracking progress, and by mid June 90% of the national caseload was shown to be in the correct organisation with the work to reallocate remaining cases on track. 

We have done extensive checking of the offender allocations and are confident that the vast majority of offenders have been assigned correctly. Where Trusts have identified concerns about transferring a particular offender, they have been able to postpone transfer until they are absolutely confident it is safe to do so. Local managers are continuing to ensure that every case continues to be managed appropriately. 
Probation staff sickness/emotional health
We recognise that staff morale is a very important issue and I understand that this has been a time of great change. However, as the employers of probation staff until 1 June, Trusts have worked hard to ensure their workforce was effectively engaged and provided them with as much information as possible relating to the transfer. I want to reassure you that both the NPS and the CRCs leaders are now continuing this essential dialogue with their staff. 
The Programme has provided significant support to staff during the transition period - a national operations centre was open continuously throughout the cutover period, to support frontline staff and their leaders with any emerging issues. Local transition managers and ICT change managers were also working on the ground throughout the transition period to support staff and quickly flag any emerging issues to the national operations centre. Moving beyond the transition period, we continue to maintain clear weekly communications to staff across the service. 
Court reports

The total number of Pre Sentence Report (PSR) requests, of which Standard Delivery Reports are a part, will not change as a consequence of the Transforming Rehabilitation reforms. Under the new operating model all PSRs must be prepared by the NPS and the probation workforce has been allocated to the new organisations in line with future capacity needs. We have also contacted HMCTS and Heads of Crime and they have not reported any issues of probation not providing reports on time. 
Estates relocations causing difficult journeys for clients

This is unlikely to be an issue, as there are no plans for the probation estate to change as a direct result of transition. The NPS and CRCs are operating from the buildings currently used by Trusts. Where a building services a function that only exists in the CRC (e.g. a community payback unit) or NPS (e.g. an approved premise) it is being operated by that organisation. Where a building services a function that exists in both the NPS and CRC, (e.g. an offender management unit) both organisations are co-located within that building. In the future if either the NPS or CRCs want to move the new organisations to a new location, they will have to follow due process and consult with staff. 

Interface between probation and prisons in the Target Operating Model
The model set out in the Target Operating Model was designed jointly with those working in prison and probation services in order to ensure it is operationally deliverable. The interfaces between prisons, the National Probation Service and Community Rehabilitation Companies have been carefully considered and requirements placed on all three parts of the system in either Service Level Agreements or Contracts. The NOMS contract management function is closely monitoring how these interfaces are working during the current period of public ownership, and will continue to do so post share sale.
Non allocation of cases/unavailable records due to ICT difficulties (NDelius)/Lockheed Martin ICT Contract
It is inaccurate to paint a picture of systematic ICT failure as this does not reflect the experience of most probation staff. The vast majority of staff have been able to come into work and do what they do best – manage offenders and protect the public. 
The data reconciliation work carried out after the migration confirmed that cases had been successfully moved across and that none had been lost. Under the new structures, staff have new roles which require them to have access to different information. It is possible that some staff believe that records have disappeared simply because they no longer have access to them. In some cases, the Role Based Access Controls permissions meant that some probation staff had difficulty accessing some files but we have been working to deal with this issue. This is being resolved locally using guidance provided from the programme which can be resolved by local ICT managers.

In relation to the Lockheed Martin ICT Contract, my ICT Director, Ben Booth, responded to this point on 28 March 2014 following it being raised with him by UNISON’s National Officer, Ben Priestley in February 2014. As Ben set out in his letter, TUPE Consultation with staff in relation to the Lockheed Martin ICT contract is not applicable for the simple reason that there is no intention to transfer the staff and the staff do not automatically transfer under TUPE as this does not apply because there is no service provision change. This is a completely new contract and it has been made between NOMS and Lockheed Martin, not the previous Trusts nor the existing CRCs. The delivery of this contract will be provided centrally and Lockheed Martin is engaged to provide call answering, recording and then referral to local ICT staff who will continue to be employed in the CRC or the NPS. 
Even if this were potentially to engage TUPE, which we believe is not the case, there is no relevant transfer because this would be covered by the exemption in Regulation 3(5) of TUPE, as it is part of an administrative re-organisation to deliver public services. The ICT staff in the Trusts therefore transferred on the 1st June via the Staff Transfer Scheme and there has been consultation in relation to that transfer as part of the Transforming Rehabilitation programme.

 

The matter was raised again with Ben Booth by UNISON's Devon & Cornwall Branch on 12 June, together with a series of supplemental questions. Officials are investigating the matter again and will respond shortly and provide you with a copy of our response. 
Conclusion

As you reference in your letter, we will be conducting further testing as we head towards share sale to ensure we understand the state of readiness of systems and the required activity over time to ensure systems are fit for purpose. The period in public ownership will also allow for system refinement, maturation of processes and implementation of any necessary adjustments. This is an evolutionary transition and therefore we will use all of the period to share sale to ensure the system is working smoothly. 
I hope that this letter addresses your concerns. I would be happy to meet to discuss how we can work together to effectively deliver these reforms. 
Yours sincerely,
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